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Gresford Parish

We have been unable as yet, to obtain a great deal of history regard-
ing the early years of Gresford Parish, but we are hopeful that in the
years to come a more detailed account may be researched and
written.

The Parochial District of Gresford has four churches:- The first
Sacred Ileart Church at Summer Hill was built of timber and was
opened before 1841, It was then rebuilt in brick and opened in 1913. St.
Helen's Church at Gresford was opened in 1867, St. Paul’s Church at
Glendonbrook in 1889 and St Columba’s Church at Paterson was
opened in 1884,

In the first directory of the Australian Church, published in 1841 by
the famous W.A. Duncan, foundation editor of the first Catholic news-
paper, “The Australasian Chronicle”, we find the following report:- “At
Paterson there is also a wooden chapel, roofed, and a very excellent
building, cost£150. Mr. Keily and Mr. Clarke gaye three acres of land to
this church, which contains nearly 300 persons.” The number of Catho-
lics at Paterson at that time, was reported to be 120 with 10 Communi-
cants. This report would refer to the first Sacred Heart Church at
Summer Hill.

St Helen's Church at Gresford was opened on 5 October, 1867, and
the occasion was given tull coverage by the Maitland Mercury of the
day. Bishop James Murray was present for the High Mass and blessing
of the Church. Reverend M. Doyle was celebrant with Reverend P.
Phelan and Reverend W, Stone acting as deacon and sub-deacon. The
choir from St. John's Cathedral, Maitland, were present and under the
“guidance of Mr. J. Broderick, executed the music in their accustomed
finished style, After the first gospel, the Vencrable Archdeacon
McEnroe, from Sydney, preached an appropriate and instructive
sermon. The Bishop then gave the usual indulgences of forty days. A
collection was made by Father Phelan and Mr. Doyle, which we believe
was satisfactory. At the end of the mass a brief financial statement was
made by Father Phelan, showing in a rough way the receipts and
expenditure in connection with the church. He passed a high eulogium
on Mr. MacCormack for presenting the site and £100 as a donation, and
on Mr. Doyle, his son-in-law, for his donation 0f £50, and for his untiring
exertions about this new Church,

After the religious ceremonies had concluded, his Lordship, the
clergy and the majority of the congregation adjourned to a magnificent
lincheon, prepared for them by Mrs. Doyle and some lady friends. We
have seldom seen a repast of this kind equalled for profusion and
clegance; the wines, produced in the district by Mr. Glenny, were
particularly commented on. The guests, numbering some hundreds,
appeared determined to do ample justice to the delicacies prepared for
them. and when we add that many of them came some ten or twenty
miles, this desire on their part was perfectly natural.



The Chairman brought the proceedings to a close by giving the toast
to “The Choir of St. John's, West Maitland’, the members of which had
always shown theirwillingness to give their services on occasions of this
kind, and had that day given substantial proof of it, by coming twenty-
eight miles, though unaccustomed to rough it through the bush. In
connection with this toast he begged to mention the name of Mr.
Thomas Hyndes, a member of the choir, and also contractor for their
new church, He said Mr. Hyndes had given great satisfaction about the
building of the new church. He also spoke highly and humorously of the
versatility of Mr. Hyndes' talents, whether on the cricket ground. or on
the river, whether at the head of the fire brigade, or driving a precious
cargo along a hard bush road, whether erecting the material building of
a church, or chanting the music of Mozart. About this stage of the
proceedings a splendid thunderstorm broke over the scene, and whilst
tending to drown the eloquence of the speakers, also cooled the atmos-
phere, and made the evening an agreeable one for the return
home."”

A sequel to the St. John's Choir visit to Gresford was reported in the
“Newcastle and Maitland Catholic Sentinel™:-

“A storm was gathering when they left Cresford, and the parish priest
did his best to prevail on them to delay their departure till it had
passed.” The Choir members ignored this and set out for home. They
were caughtin the storm and the members, drenched to the skin, had to
seek shelter as best they could. “They would never be taken for the
joyous party that only a few short hours before had awakened the
echoes by their singing as they sped along towards Gresford.” This visit
was sadly remembered by the Choir, as one of the members, Miss Helen
Broderick developed pheumonia, and died as a result, a month later,

St Columba’s Church at Paterson was opened on 21 December,
1884. It was built by Mr. Morris of East Maitland, the contractor for the
foundations and Mr. Coleman who did the brickwork. The total cost of
the work was to be about £400.

On 11th September, 1884, the Maitland Mercury reported:-

“The size of the edifice is to be 40ft by 20ft. The preparations for the
foundation are now in process, and it is expected that the ceremony of
laying the foundation stone or first brick will take place, in a week or so.
It is not definitely announced that such a ceremony will take place, but
it is thought that such an opportunity of making a collection will be
made.”

The building apparently progressed quite well and the Mercury was
able to report on Thursday, 13 November, 1884:-

“This new edifice is making rapid progress. The brick work appears to
be completed. and good progress has been made with the roof, hence
completion may be expected shortly. The prominent situation and
ornate architecture of the structure will make it, when finished, quite
an ornament to our town. We shall endeavour to furnish some particu-



lars when we report the opening, &c. A ball in aid of the building fund, is
to take place tomorrow night in the School of Arts.”

On 13 December, 1884, an announcement in the Mercury indicated
that the Consecration of the new Church would take place:-

“His Lordship the Bishop of Maitland will Solemnly Bless and Open the
New Catholic Church at Paterson at Eleven O'Clock Mass Sunday,
December 21st. The choir of St. John's Cathedral, West Maitland, will
attend.”

On 3 January, 1885, a report was in the Sydney paper “The Express”

regarding the opening and consecration of the new Church:-
“The ceremony of solemnlyblessing and opening the new Church of St
Columba at the Paterson, was performed by his Lordship the Right
Reverend Dr. Murray on Sunday week. There was alarge number of the
Catholics of the district present to witness the proceedings, which were
of an interesting and imposing nature. The Bishop was assisted in the
performance of his duties by the Very Reverend P. Hand, V.G., and the
Reverend Fathers Dwyer and Darcy. The new structure, which oc-
cupies a prominent position is of brick on cement foundation, 40 by 20
feet inside. It is of Gothic design with lancet windows, and elaborately
ornamented with embellishments in wood and cement outside. The
internal arrangements are all that can be desired, and altogether the
Church forms quite an ornament to the town. The singing on the
occasion was of a first-class character, the local choir having been
strengthened by several members of St. John's Cathedral Choir, Mait-
land. The sum subseribed in aid of the new building amounted to over
£70.7

At this stage we know very little regarding the history of those early
days. We do know that Father Michael Kiernan (1911-1939) used to
travel down from Gresford in a horse and sulky initially and then
acquired aone seater Dodge car towards the end of his stay at Gresford.
The Church had the porch and sacristy area built on around the early
1900’s to provide overnight accommodation for the priest if nec-
essary.

Mr. Charles O'Connor was the local schoolteacher in both Father
Kiernan and Father Quiggley's time and both these priests would visit
these good people after Mass to have refreshments before their return
trip to Gresford. Mr. O'Connor was a good man and prepared the
children for their First Holy Communion, trained the altar boys and
taught them the necessary Latin and also played the organ for the
Church choir. There was an excellent choir in those days.

Mass was held on three Sundays of the month — two 10 a.m. Masses
and one 8.30 am. Mass. This 8.30 am. Mass was the only Communion
Mass during the month, owing to the difficulty of the Priest having to
fast for so long and the distance necessary for him to travel



A well known family in those early days were Thomas Edward and
Maude Florence Jordan. Maude came to Paterson around 1900, where
she was employed as a nursemaid to the children of the local Police
Sargeant, Sargeant Cunningham and his wife. She met Tom. who had
taken up a selection of land at Glenbourne, Paterson, and they were
married by Father Patrick Cullen at St. Columba’s in 1904. Their first
home was at Clenbourne, where Tom carried on a cream dairy, which
meant in those early days that the cans of cream were transported by
horse and slide to the river, three miles distant, where it was collected
by boat, which in turn conveyed it to the Creamery at Morpeth.

To attend Sunday Mass it was necessary to travel by horse and buggy,
sometimes the long way around to the township, on other oceasions to
the river, cross the river by boat and proceed on foot to the Church,
During the Missions conducted by the Redemptorist Fathers, this
procedure was followed morning and night for one week. On many
oceasions, the family was joined by Maude’s sister, Lydia, and her
husband, Jim, who was Tom's brother. These people lived at Dunn'’s
Creek at the time. In 1918 Tom purchased “Sussex Farm™ from Mr.
Stewart Corner, and the family took up residence in the fine two-story
home built in 1836 and originally known as “Longhouse Green” (which
was demolished in 1960 to allow for road alteration). In 1924, on
completion of their new home “Sussex House”, Tom and Maude relin-
quished their former home to Doctor Kem Yee, who conducted the
building as a hospital known as “Cintra”, staffed by Matron Locke and
others.

In 1908 their first son, Stanley Thomas, died from shock after receiv-
ing a small burn on his arm. He was two years old. In 1924 their thirteen
year old daughter, Ellen, was burnt to death when a gas jet ignited,
setting her clothing alight In an attempt to extinguish the flames,
which completely covered her, her father's hands and arms were ter-
ribly burnt.

During the following years more healthy children were born to this
exemplary couple, numbering fourteen in all. Tom, with the assistance
of his sons carried on farming pursuits, and was noted statewide for his
tomatoes — he was known as “the Tomato King . A son of the soil, his
knowledge of the land and the seasons was boundless. He was a particu-
larly kind and generous man, especially to those less fortunate than
himself. During the Great Depression in 1929, when the number of
men secking work was ever on the increase, they always received
something to eatat “Sussex House” and were allowed to sleep in the hay
shed before proceeding on their way. Apparently, it was usual for them
to jump the train to stations north of Sydney in pursuit of odd jobs in
rural areas. Some had walked many miles and were barefooted. having
worn out their boots or shoes. Maude frequently helped out with
footwear and articles of clothing for the unfortunate travellers. She was
a gracious, gentle lady, noted for her kind and charitable disposition.
Her main interests were her family, her home and her beautiful garden.
Blooms from her garden frequently graced the altar at St Columba’s.




Miss Ida Cibbs, who lived at Priestley’s corner, collected the flowers
each Saturday, when she walked to the Church to decorate for Sunday
Mass,

Thirteen of the fourteen Jordan children were baptised at the little
church. It wasalso the venue for the First Communions, the Sacraments
of Confirmation and later on many marriages. For the fee of ten shil-
lings, paid annually, families were entitled to their own pew, suitably
identified by a brass placque bearing the family name,

Tom died in 1961 at the age of eighty-three years and on 10
September, 1983, at the age of ninety-nine years Maude passed
away.

This pioneer couple leave behind 152 living descendants, com-
prising 12 children, 39 grandchildren, 98 great grandchildren and 3
great great grandchildren. Two of Maude's brothers still live locally,
Cec Collison of Paterson and Sydney Collison of Gresford, and many of
the descendants still live in the Gresford Parish,

Thomas und Maude Jordan married St. Columba’s Church, 1904



The years have dealt kindly with our Church but in this Centenary
vear, it is badly in need of repairs and a general facelift. Because of this
need, a committee was formed at the beginning of the year to organise
the repairs and to direct celebrations for the Centenary year. The
committee eventually decided to restore the Church as far as possible
so that the general character of St. Columba’s would not be spoilt. Some
of the decisions that have been made have taken a lot of discussion and
thought, but because of the time and care taken in reaching decisions,
we feel quite sure that the Church is something that the parishioners
and the people of Paterson may be proud of. The main work of restor-
ation has been completed by 2 December, the date of the Centenary
celebrations. It was considered that 21 December was too close to
Christmas to hold the celebrations.

The plaster work inside the Church has been repaired by Mr. Sylvio
Bizzotto at no cost to us, and he hasalso repaired the cement render and
pointing outside. The interior of the Church, including the ceiling, has
been painted. Four stained glass windows have been put into the
Sanctuary and the remaining windows in the main body of the church
are new. New pews have replaced the extremely old ones of varying
shapes and sizes. Carpet has been laid for the first time. New lighting
has been installed and fans have been put in the ceiling.

The gutterings and plumbing have been renewed as have been the
crosses on top of the Church. It is our intention to landscape and
beautify the grounds. The paint that existed on some of the outside
bricks was sandblasted off and they are in their natural state. Restor-
ation work has cost about $32,000.

A sign has also been erected in the Church grounds giving the times
for Masses etc. These Mass times can be most confusing to new and not
so new parishioners. I wonder how many of us have rushed down to
Church on Saturday evening and found it deserted, and have realised it
is the 8.30 am. or 10 a.m. Mass that week.

Our Centenary Ball on 7 September was a wonderful success, both
socially and financially. There were 340 people present from through-
out the Diocese and the profit for the Ball was $1,500. We are most
grateful to everyone for their support and the very small band of
workers who worked for its success.

Bishop Leo Clarke, Fathers Vincent Ryan and Michael Timbs will
concelebrate the Centenary Mass. It is our intention to have a luncheon
in the local School of Arts after the Mass.

This Centenary year has resulted in some exciting and welcome
changes in our Parish. Various committees have been formed to aid in
the running of our Parish and aiming at parishioner involvement in
what is our Church and our responsibility.

The Gresford Parish Council was formed just in time to recommend
approval of the money required to do the refurbishing of St Columba’s.
We have formed a Social Committee and the various social functions
have been most enjoyable and has resulted in a feeling of unity and
friendship within the Parish.



The world of today is changing and progressing so rapidly that it is
sometimes beneficial to take stock of ourselves and our faith, to help us
define what this gift of the Catholic religion means to us in the modern
world, and how best we can pass this precious knowledge on to our
children and to others. It is important to remember that no matter who
we are or what we do, we are all basically children of God and therefore
equal in his eyes. It is how we measure up to his standard that is
important. As we unite and grow in our faith let us hope that this year
will be a landmark in the history of Gresford Parish— a year when we all
come closer to God through acknowledgement of our need of Him and
through loving and helping one another. The beautiful prayer of St
Francis of Assisi could well be our guide:-

Lord make me an instrument of Thy peace

where there is hatred, let me sow love:

Where there is injury, pardon:

where there is despair, hope:

and where there is sadness, joy.

O Divine Master, grant that I may not so much seek
to be consoled as to console:

to be understood as to understand:

to be loved. as to love:

for it is in giving that we receive,

it is in pardoning that we are pardoned,

and it is in dying that we are born to eternal life.




